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Physical Description of Site:

This Victorian Regency building is on a prominent corner site, with two sides directly fronting the footpaths.
Trees are located to the east. The double storey, white-painted structure has a hipped roof, covered in slate,
and bluestone foundations. The ground level appears to be dressed stone, but is rendered and scored
brickwork, the upper level has prominent quoinwork against white-painted brick walls. The building addresses
the streets with a spayed corner and two steps to a timber panelled door and toplight, with a boarded up
timber frame window on the second level.

The north elevation has two symmetrical double-hung windows with quoinwork surrounds on the second
storey, and a single larger window with sidelights on the ground floor, which may be a later addition. There
are three painted brick chimneys behind the ridge, andone in front of it.

The west elevation on Boundary Rd is longer, with four double-hung windows, one boarded up window
opening, and a timber door on the ground level. The upper level has three double-hung windows, and two
boarded up openings, directly above the lower level openings. Above the door is a small window on the
second level.
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History of Site/Object/Place:

This building is believed to be the original Black Swan Hotel opened in the 1850s by
Charles Savage. Mr. Savage experienced some problems in retaining his licence and
there were rumours of criminal activity however these have not been confirmed. Wynd

claims that it may have been these allegations that gave the local name of the Dirty
Duck, to the hotel.(1)

Emily Harrison is believed to have taken over in 1881 with the name now changed to
the White Swan. The ten roomed two storey building had stables, and an underground

tank, when it was offered for sale by Hodges Brewery in 1888. In 1898 it was
described as a former hotel when it was sold.(2)

-+l It was owned by Mr. R. Warren from 1918 and used as a private residence.(3)

More research is necessary.

References:
1. Wynd , I. (1988) Balla-wein a history of the Shire of Bellarine,p.93

2. Wynd uses BSC minutes , Geelong Advertiser and Geelong Directory 1861
3. The Grinter family pers. comm.

Lorraine Huddle Renate Howe  Ros Lewis  Karyn Francis
CENTRE FOR AUSTRALIAN STUDIES DEAKIN UNIVERSITY 1996




BELLARINE HERITAGE STUDY RECORD SHEET -

Site No.  Street/Site name Town / Suburb

Record No.
Address 169 | |Boundary Rd Whittington 3219

Page No.
4 of 4

Statement of Cultural Significance:

This double-storey brick Victorian Regency building dates from the 1850s and is the original Black Swan Hotel.
The building form and quoin work details are typical of 1850s hotels in Geelong. It is one of the few original
hotels of social significance in the area. The building has a good degree of integrity.

Itis of aesthetic, historic and social significance to the region.
The Black Swan Hotel dates from the early period of settlement and was a social centre for the local Whittington
community. It was also a stopping place for Cobb and Co and other coaches. Its name was changed to the
White Swan some time before 1881.The hotel lost its licence around the time of the First World War and has
since been used as a residence. The stuccoed facade, scored to imitate stone, the emphasised quoin work
and stringcourse are all characteristic of the Victorian Regency style of which this is a distinctive example.

It is of REGIONAL cultural significance.
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